
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA   CITY COUNCIL MEETING & 
 CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS   PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA 

October 15, 2019  5:30 pm 
pppp.M.

1. Call to Order by Mayor Jonathan McCollar

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman John Riggs

3. Recognitions/Public Presentations

A) Presentation by Curtis Woody, Partnership Specialist Atlanta Regional Census 
Center.

B) Presentation of a Proclamation Honoring October 2019 as Domestic Violence 
Awareness Month.

C) Employee of the Quarter for  the 4th Quarter, Jeremy Hancock.

4. Public Comments (Agenda Item):

5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda

A) Approval of Minutes

a) 10-01-2019 Called Council Minutes

b) 10-01-2019 Executive Session Minutes

c) 10-01-2019 Council Minutes

d) 10-01-2019 Executive Session Minutes

e) Consideration of a Motion to approve a Traffic Signal Permit application with 
GDOT for SR 24 at 163’ West of Gary St.. RRFB.

f) Consideration of a Motion to approve Grant of right of way easement to Excelsior 
EMC to run electrical lines over City owned property on Langston Chapel Road"

6. Second Reading and Consideration of a Motion to approve Ordinance 2019-10: An 
Ordinance regarding speed limit enforcement using speed detection devices.

7. Public Hearing & Consideration of a Motion to approve application for Sec.6-17(d) 
exemptions to open container prohibition:

a) Eagle Creek Brewing Company

106 Savannah Ave Ste B

Phi Mu Parent’s Weekend

10/18/2019

8pm-11pm

8. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 19-09-01: 
Josh Whitfield requests a variance from Article XV, Section 1509(C), Table 6 of the 
Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the internal illumination of building signs in Sign 
District 4 (Tax Parcel S28 000051 000).



 

 

9. Public Hearing and Consideration of a Motion to Approve: APPLICATION V 19-09-02: 

Josh Whitfield requests a variance from Article XV, Section 1509(C), Table 6 of the 

Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum sign height allowed in Sign 

District 4. (Tax Parcel S18 000067 000). 

 

10. Consideration of a Motion to approve Resolution 2019-34: A Resolution waiving 2020 

Alcohol License renewal late fees and setting the 2020 Alcoholic Beverage License Fees. 

 

11. Consideration of Motion to approve Resolution 2019-35: A Resolution requesting 

approval to apply for assistance to Firefighters Grant for the City of Statesboro, Georgia. 

 

12. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to Insituform Technologies LLC in the 

amount of $643,792.20 to provide rehabilitation services to approximately 8800’ of 

sanitary sewer main. This project was funded as part of the 2020 CIP Budget (WW-14) 

with funds coming from System Revenues and 2013 SPLOST. 

 

13. Other Business from City Council 

 

14.  City Managers Comments 

 

15. Public Comments (General) 

 

16. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” 

“Real Estate” and/or “Potential Litigation” in accordance with O.C.G.A 50-14-3(b) 

 

17. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 



A ProclAmAtion by the mAyor And 

city council of StAteSboro, GeorGiA  

honorinG october 2019 
AS domeStic Violence AWAreneSS month 

   
WHEREAS, the crime of domestic violence violates an individual’s privacy, dignity, security 

and humanity due to the systematic use of physical, emotional, sexual, 
psychological and economic control and/or abuse; and 

 
WHEREAS, domestic violence leaves an imprint of fear and hostility; and 
 
WHEREAS, the problems of domestic violence are not confined to any group or groups of 

people but cross all economic, racial, affectional preference, and social barriers, 
thereby affecting society as a whole; and 

  
WHEREAS,  in the city of Statesboro, adults and children are victims of violence each year; and 
 
WHEREAS: Statesboro City Council is committed to restoring the right to freedom from fear in 

our communities: and 
  
WHEREAS,  in our quest to impose sanctions on those who break the law by perpetrating 

violence, we must also meet the needs of victims of domestic violence and their 
children who often suffer grave financial, physical, and psychological losses; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESLOLVED, that in recognition of the important work done by 
domestic violence programs, in cooperation with Safe Haven, I, Jonathan McCollar, Mayor of the 
City of Statesboro and on behalf of the entire City Council, does herby proclaim the month of 
October 2019 as 

 Domestic Violence Awareness Month. 
 

We urge all citizens, agencies, and businesses to work together as a team in our community through 
prevention, intervention and education programs, to eliminate domestic violence and become a 
violence free community.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City to be  
affixed this 15th day of October of the year of our Lord two thousand nineteen. 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 



 
 

 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 

Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 

STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 

Charles Penny, City Manager 

 Leah Harden, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum, District 1 

Sam Jones, District 2 

Jeff Yawn, District 3 

John Riggs, District 4 

Derek Duke, District 5 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

    
To:   Charles Penny, City Manager 

  Jason Boyles, Assistant City Manager 

 

From:  Krystina Johnson, Human Resources Coordinator 

 

Date:  October 08, 2019 

 

RE:  Council Meeting – Award Employee of the Quarter (Quarter 4) 

 

 

Recommendation:  
Employee of the Quarter for Quarter 4 Winner Jeremy Hancock 

 

Background:  
The purpose of the COS Employee of the Quarter (EOQ) is to recognize outstanding full-

time and part-time employees of COS who embody the City’s mission: To provide the 

most responsive and progressive public services so that our residents, business and 

visitors can enjoy the highest quality of life Statesboro has to offer. 

 

The selection criteria for a COS nominee should include but not limited to the following 

demonstrated traits: 

 

Embraces Forward Thinking and Innovation: 

An employee who is open to new ideas, foster’s creativity and risk-taking to support 

continuous improvement in their departments and/or citywide. 

 

Demonstrate & Strives for Excellence: 

An employee who consistently goes above and beyond in work and the city to help 

our residents, businesses and visitors to enjoy the City of Statesboro. 

 

Exhibits High Quality Customer Service: 

An employee that provides superior service that enables our customers to enjoy their 

experience with the City of Statesboro.  

 

Models Professionalism: 

An employee that leads by example, with good character and consistent behavior 

that reflects the standard of our policy and/or industry best practices. 

 

Celebrates Teamwork: 



An employee who encourages and values group participation and motivates others to 

build teamwork with others in their department and the city. 

 

Promotes Safety: 

An employee who identifies safety deficiencies and makes corrective actions to 

maintain the safety for themselves and those in the City of Statesboro. 

 
Council Person and District: 

N/A (citywide) 

 

 

 



 
 
  
 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
CALLED COUNCIL MINUTES 

October 1st, 2019 
 
Called Council Meeting                   50 E. Main St. City Hall Council Chambers           7:30 AM 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Jonathan McCollar called the meeting to order.  
 
ATTENDENCE  

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Jonathan McCollar Mayor Present  
Phil Boyum Councilmember Present    
Sam Jones Councilmember Present  
Jeff Yawn Councilmember Present  
John Riggs Councilmember Present  
Derek Duke Councilmember Present  

 
Other staff present was: City Manager Charles Penny, Assistant City Manager Jason Boyles, City Attorney Cain Smith 
and City Clerk Leah Harden. 

 
 

2. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” in accordance with 
O.C.G.A 50-14-3(b) 

 
A motion was made to enter into executive session 7:30 am 
 
 

RESULT: 
 

MOVER: 
 

SECONDER: 
 

AYES: 
 

ABSENT: 
 
 
Mayor McCollar called the meeting back to order.   
 
3. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 

 
A motion was made to adjourn the council meeting. 
 

RESULT: 
 

MOVER:  Councilman Derek Duke 

 Approved (Unanimous) 

 Councilman Derek Duke 

 Councilman Jeff Yawn 

 Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 
 
 

 Approved (Unanimous) 



 
SECONDER: 

 
AYES: 

 
ABSENT: 

 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:34 am. 
  
 
 
 
 
 

 Councilman John Riggs 

 Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 
 
 



 
 
  
 
 

CITY OF STATESBORO 
COUNCIL MINUTES 

October 1st, 2019 
 

 
Regular Meeting                               50 E. Main St. City Hall Council Chambers                     9:00 AM 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Jonathan McCollar called the meeting to order  
 

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE 
Councilman Jeff Yawn gave the Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ATTENDENCE  

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 
Jonathan McCollar Mayor Present  
Phil Boyum Councilmember Present    
Sam Jones Councilmember Present  
Jeff Yawn Councilmember Present  
John Riggs Councilmember Present  
Derek Duke Councilmember Present  

 
Other staff present was: City Manager Charles Penny, Assistant City Manager Jason Boyles, City Attorney Cain Smith 
and City Clerk Leah Harden. 
 
3. Recognitions/Public Presentations: None 

 
4. Public Comments (Agenda Item):  None 

 
5. Consideration of a Motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

A) Approval of Minutes 
a) 09-17-2019 Council Minutes 
b) 09-17-2019 Work Session Minutes 
 

  
A motion was made to approve the consent agenda   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   



6. Second Reading and Consideration of a Motion to approve Ordinance 2019-09: An Ordinance amending 
Chapter 6 of the Statesboro Code of Ordinances revising license classifications changing types of alcoholic 
beverages allowed to be serviced by licensees changing license to run for the calendar year and streamlining 
language involving applicant background checks. 

 
A motion was made to approve Ordinance 2019-09: An Ordinance amending Chapter 6 of the Statesboro Code of 
Ordinances.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
7. Public Hearing & Consideration of a Motion to approve application for Sec.6-17(d) exemptions to open 

container prohibition:  
 
A) The Blue Room 
1830 Chandler Rd 
Kaleo Lyles - Manager 
Type of Event: Outdoor concert, in the parking lot 
Date of Event: 11/6/2019 
6:00pm-11:00pm 
 

A motion was made to open the Public Hearing 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

No one spoke for or against the request. 
 

A motion was made to close the Public Hearing  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Councilman  Phil Boyum 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Councilman  John Riggs 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   



 
 
A motion was made to approve application for The Blue Room   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
8. First Reading and consideration of a motion to move forward with Ordinance 2019-10: An Ordinance 

regarding speed limit enforcement using speed detection devices. 
 
A motion was made to open the Public Hearing 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
City attorney Cain Smith stated an adoption of an Ordinance for speed limit enforcement using speed detection devices 
is a requirement by the Georgia Department of Transportation. 
 
A motion was made to close the Public Hearing  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
   
A motion was made to approve the first reading and move forward with Ordinance 2019-10: an Ordinance regarding 
speed limit enforcement using speed detection devices.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Phil Boyum 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   



 
9. Consideration of a motion to approve Resolution 2019-33: A Resolution approving application for 

the FY2019 Georgia Transportation Infrastructure Bank (GTIB) Grant for the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia and committing matching funds. 
 

A motion was made to approve Resolution 2019-33: A Resolution approving application for the FY2019 Georgia 
Transportation Infrastructure Bank (GTIB) Grant for the City of Statesboro, Georgia and committing matching funds. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 

10. Consideration of a Motion to Approve the Bulloch County Historical Society to place a historical 
marker on City of Statesboro property recognizing the former Statesboro High and Industrial 
School on the property of the Zadie Lundy Douglas Little League Field and authorize the Mayor to 
sign an easement for its placement. 
 

A motion was made to approve the Bulloch County Historical Society to place a historical marker on City of Statesboro 
property recognizing the former Statesboro High and Industrial School on the property of the Zadie Lundy Douglas 
Little League Field and authorize the Mayor to sign an easement for its placement.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

11. Consideration of a Motion to award a Sole Source Contract with Connetics Transportation Group 
(CTG) in the amount of $29,636.00 to develop a Transit Implementation Plan for the City of 
Statesboro. 
 

A motion was made to award a Sole Source Contract with Connetics Transportation Group in the amount of $29,636.00. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Councilman  Sam Jones 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   



 
12. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to Vermeer Southeast Sales & Service in the amount 

of $43,568.00 for one Vermeer CTX Mini Skid Steer with funds approved in the 2020 CIP Budget 
item #NGD 61. 
 

A motion was made to award a contract to Vermeer Southeast Sales & Services in the amount of $43,568.00 for one 
Vermeer CTX Mini Skid Steer with funds approve in the 2020 CIP Budget item #NGD61.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

13. Consideration of a Motion to award a contract to Takeuchi Mfg. (US) Ltd. In the amount of 
$36,816.43 for one Takeuchi TB230 compact excavator with fund approved in the 2020 CIP Budget 
item #NGD 62. 
 

A motion was made to award a contract to Takeuchi Mft. (US) Ltd. in the amount of $36,816.43 for one Takeuchi TB230 
compact excavator with fund approved in the 2020 CIP Budget item #NGD62. 
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

14. Consideration of a Motion for Award of Contract to Johnson Controls, Inc in the amount of 
$109,193.00 for replacement of the HVAC system at the Police Department facility. 
 

A motion was made to approve the award of Contract to Johnson Controls, Inc. in the amount of $109,193.00 for 
replacement of the HVAC system at the Police Department Facility.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn  

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Phil Boyum 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   



15. Other Business from City Council 
 
Councilman John Riggs stated he would like a moratorium on the construction of news apartment complexes as we have 
too many apartments that are empty. City Manager Charles Penny stated this item would be on the next work session. 
Councilman Phil Boyum would like to include condominiums.    

 
16.  City Managers Comments 

 
City Manager Charles Penny updated Mayor and Council regarding the shifting of Utility Billing from under the City 
Clerk’s Office to the Finance Department. He stated there will be cross training for all clerks to be able to take tax 
payments as well as water payments. 
Mr. Penny introduced Amanda Ross the new Keep Statesboro Bulloch Beautiful Coordinator and reminded everyone of 
the cleanup day set for this Saturday October 5, 2019 from 9am – 1pm. 
Mr. Penny reminded Mayor and Council to stop by administration to get their ID cards made. 

 
17. Public Comments (General): None   

 
18. Consideration of a Motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss “Personnel Matters” in accordance with 

O.C.G.A 50-14-3(b) 
 
A motion was made to enter into Executive Session at 9:27 am  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
A motion was made to exit Executive Session at 10:01 am  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 

A motion was made to reappoint James Byrd, Sr., Benjamin McKay and Jamie Cartee for another term to the Statesboro 
Planning Commission.  
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Councilman  Phil Boyum 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Phil Boyum 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Boyum 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 



 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 

19. Consideration of a Motion to Adjourn 
 
A motion was made adjourn the meeting.   
 

  RESULT: 
 

  MOVER: 
 

  SECONDER: 
 

  AYES: 
  

               ABSENT 
 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:02 am.   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved (Unanimous) 

Councilman  Derek Duke 

Councilman  Jeff Yawn 

Boyum, Jones, Yawn, Riggs, Duke 

   

   







jcole
Typewritten Text
254

jcole
Typewritten Text
City of Statesboro

jcole
Typewritten Text
Bulloch

jcole
Typewritten Text
Langston Chapel Rd.

jcole
Typewritten Text
0

jcole
Typewritten Text
City of Statesboro

jcole
Typewritten Text
Bird Enterprises

jcole
Typewritten Text
Bulloch County

jcole
Typewritten Text
Pope Jeffrey D & Ronnie J

jcole
Typewritten Text
92.65





 

 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

Jason Boyles, Asst. City Manager 
Leah Harden, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Derek Duke, District 5 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: www.statesboroga.gov 

 

To:  Charles Penny, City Manager 
 
From:  John Washington, City Engineer 
 
Date:  September 24, 2019 
 
RE:  List of Roads – Statesboro Speed Limit Ordinance 
 
Policy Issue: Ordinance - Speed Limit 
 
Recommendation: Attached for Mayor and City Council’s consideration and adoption is the 
2019 List of Roads (LOR) with City Street Speed Limits as recommended by the City Public 
Works and Engineering Department and approved by Georgia Department of Transportation 
(GDOT).  
 
Background: The City Public Works and Engineering Department works with GDOT and the City 
Police Department (SPD) to update the current speed limit list for Statesboro’s streets and 
roads. The adoption of the 2019 List of City Streets Speed Limits is a recurring process for the 
City of Statesboro, with the goal of being certified to use SDDs to enforce speed limits within 
the city limits. Adoption of this document by Mayor and City Council is one of the steps 
required by the state to allow the use of approved speed detection devices (SDD) (e.g. radar or 
laser detectors) to enforce city and state speed limits inside Statesboro’s city limits. This 
process is repeated every three years or when speed changes occur within the city limits. After 
the document has been adopted by City Council and signed by the Mayor, the document will be 
returned to GDOT for documentation and filing. 
 
Budget Impact: None.  
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachment(s): Ordinance - Speed 
 
City Manager’s Recommendation: Recommend approval and authorization for the Mayor to 
sign the GDOT LOR on the Council’s behalf and Council’s adoption is the 2019 List of Roads 
(LOR) with City Street Speed Limits. 
 



 

 

CITY  OF  STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

Jason Boyles, Asst. City Manager 
Leah Harden, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phil Boyum, District 1 
Sam Jones, District 2 
Jeff Yawn, District 3 
John Riggs, District 4 
Derek Duke, District 5 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence • Certified City of Ethics 
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: www.statesboroga.gov 

 

 
To:  Charles Penny, City Manager 
  Jason Boyles, Asst. City Manager 
 
From:  John Washington, City Engineer 
 
Date:  September 18, 2019 
 
RE: City of Statesboro - Speed Limit Ordinance 

List of Roads (LOR)  
 
 
Policy Issue: Ordinance 
 
Summary: Attached for Mayor and City Council’s consideration and adoption is the 2019 List of Roads 
(LOR) with City Street Speed Limits recommended by the City Public Works and Engineering Department 
and approved by Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT). Engineering works with GDOT and the 
City Police Department (SPD) to update the current speed limit list for Statesboro’s streets and roads. 
The adoption of the 2019 List of City Streets Speed Limits is a recurring process for the City of 
Statesboro, with the goal of being certified to use SDDs to enforce speed limits within the city limits. 
 
This 2019 revision adds the S&S Railroad Bed Road, a length of 1.02 miles from Cawana Road to 2,972 
feet Northwest of Pretoria Rushing Road. As a result of annexation of parcels adjacent to the 
“Clubhouse” commercial development, Old Register Road was extended 0.56 mile per agreement with 
Bulloch County. The next step in accordance with GDOT Policy 6780-4- Establishment of Speed Zones is 
adoption of the LOR as an ordinance by the Mayor and City Council. 
 
Adoption of this document by Mayor and City Council is one of the steps required by the state to allow 
the use of approved speed detection devices (SDD) (e.g. radar or laser detectors) to enforce city and 
state speed limits inside Statesboro’s city limits. This process is repeated every three years or when 
speed changes occur within the city limits. After the document has been adopted by City Council and 
signed by the Mayor, the document will be returned to GDOT for documentation and filing. 
 
The entire process will culminate with the Georgia Department of Public Safety (DPS) issuing the City of 
Statesboro a SDD Certificate that allows us to use approved SDDs to enforce speeds for a period of three 
years. The City of Statesboro has a DPS issued SDD Certificate that expires December 31, 2019. 
 
Attachment: 09092019 - STATESBORO NEW 





I 

LIST NUMBER 09092019 

Ordinance 2019 - 10: The City of Statesboro is hereby requesting that the following 
roadways be approved for the use of speed detection devices: 

: WJTHJNTHE ' ... · �IT\'JTOWN 
STATE··.· 

: 

·· l.lMffS OFancl/or ... 
ROUTE · School Name.

S.R. 24 STATESBORO 

S.R. 24 STATESBORO 

S.R. 24 STATESBORO 

S.R. 26 STATESBORO 

us 80 

S.R. 26 STATESBORO 

us 80 

S.R. 26 STATESBORO 

us 80 

S.R. 26 STATESBORO 

us 80 

S.R. 67 STATESBORO 

S.R. 67 STATESBORO 

S.R. 67 STATESBORO 

S.R. 67 STATESBORO 

S.R. 67 STATESBORO 

S.R. 67 STATESBORO 

BYPASS 

S.R. 67 STATESBORO 

BYPASS 

S.R. 73 STATESBORO 

us 301 

LIST OF ROADWAYS 

for 
CITY OF STATESBORO 

ON-SYSTEM 

· ... · .· FROM:

S.R. 26/US 80 

CR 459 Packing 
House Rd. 

S. R. 73 Bypass 

�

j 
·•. ..:C
. ·. 

0.00 

0.33 

1.12 

\? 
. : ·.· 

·• 

TO 
CR 459 Packing 
House Rd. 
S.R. 73 Bypass 

CR 340 Beasley 

. 

Rd. (E. Statesboro 
City Limits) 

0.07 mi. West of 16.00 CR 622 Williams 
CR 692 Fox Lake Rd. 
Rd. (W. 
Statesboro City 
Limits) 

CR 622 Williams 16.87 S.R. 24 
Rd. 

S.R. 24 18.37 S. R. 73 Bypass 

S. R. 73 Bypass 19.70 0.06 mi. West of 
CR 342 Rushing 
Rd. (E. Statesboro 
City Limits) 

0.22 mi. South of 16.90 CS 673 Gentilly 
S.R. 67 Bypass Rd. 
(S. Statesboro 
City Limits) 

CS 673 Gentilly 18.43 CS 699 
Rd. Zetterower Ave. 

CS 699 19.35 S.R. 73/US 301 
Zetterower Ave. 

S.R. 73/US 301 19.74 CS 702 East 
Cherry St. 

CS 702 East 20.24 S.R. 26/US 80 
Cherry St. 

S.R. 67 0.00 0.15 miles south 
of Old Register Rd 

0.15 mi south of 2.15 0.26 mi north of 
Old Register Rd SR 73/US301 

(S. Statesboro 
City Limits) 

S.R. 67 Bypass 12.18 0.10 mi. south of 
(S. Statesboro Rucker Lane. 
City Limits) 

Page I of 5 

.. ·· 

·. LENGTH 
MILE··. .·'1Nt· ... S�f;D. 

POINT MILES . LfMlT 

0.33 0.33 35 

1.12 0.79 45 

1.72 0.60 45 

16.87 0.87 45 

18.37 1.50 35 

19.70 1.33 40 

20.72 1.02 45 

18.43 1.53 45 

19.35 0.92 35 

19.74 0.39 30 

20.24 0.50 35 

20.81 0.57 30 

2.15 2.15 50 

2.60 0.45 45 

12.73 0.55 45 



















CITY OF STATESBORO 
 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum, District 1 

Sam Jones, District 2 

Jeff Yawn, District 3 

John Riggs, District 4 

Derek Duke, District 5 

 
 

 

Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 

Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 • STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence    Certified City of Ethics  

Telephone: (912) 764-5468      Fax: (912) 764-4691                                                                   

www.statesboroga.gov  

To: Charles Penny, City Manager and Leah Harden, City Clerk 

 

From: Justin Williams, City Planner I 

 

Date: October 7, 2019 

 

RE: October 15, 2019 

 

Policy Issue: Statesboro Zoning Ordinance: Zoning Variance Request 

 

Recommendation: Staff recommends disapproval of the zoning variance 

requested by application V19-09-01. Planning commission recommends 

approval with conditions.  

 

Background: Josh Whitfield requests a variance from Article XV, Section 1509(C), 

Table 6 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the internal illumination of 

building signs in Sign District 4 (Tax Parcel S28 000051 000). 

 

Budget Impact: None 

 

Council Person and District: All 

 

Attachments: Development Services Report V 19-09-01 

  

http://www.statesboroga.gov/


 

Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-01 

City of Statesboro-Department of Planning and Development 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
P.O. Box 348    (912) 764-0630 

Statesboro, Georgia 30458  (912) 764-0664 (Fax) 

 V 19-09-01 

SIGN VARIANCE REQUEST 

40 EAST MAIN STREET 

LOCATION: 40 East Main Street 

 

REQUEST: 

Variance from Article XV: Section 

1509(C), Table 6; for the placement 

of an internally illuminated building 

sign in Sign District 4.   

APPLICANT: Josh Whitfield (Whitfield Signs) 

OWNER(S): 
Avra Gregory Dixon & Robert F 

C/O Sue D Avra 

ACRES: 0.08 

PARCEL TAX  

MAP #: 
S28 000051 000 

COUNCIL        

DISTRICT:            
District 1 (Boyum) 

PROPOSAL: 

The applicant requests a variance to Article XV; Section 1509(C), Table 6 of the Statesboro Zoning 
Ordinance. Specifically, this application requests a variance from the  restriction of internally illuminated 
signs in Sign District 4 and the CBD (Central Business District) zoning district. Applicant is requesting the 
placement of a building sign with internal LED illumination at 40 East Main Street (See Exhibit D – 
Proposed Signage Plans).  

BACKGROUND:   

The applicant submitted a sign permit application on August 9, 2019 to place one sign over a pre-existing 
canopy located at 40 East Main Street. This sign would be the only signage for the building requiring permit, 
as the remaining signage would be placed within the windows. The canopy is not to be refaced, and will 
remain blank. The originally submitted sign permit application was denied on August 12, 2019 for requesting 
internal illumination in Sign District 4, which is currently prohibited for all building signs. Currently the building 
is undergoing renovations (Building Permit 02082) for a proposed Indian restaurant Tandoor and Tap.  

SURROUNDING LAND USES/ZONING:  

 ZONING: LAND USE: 

NORTH: CBD (Commercial Business 
District) 

Commercial Building (Southern Finance) 

SOUTH: CBD (Commercial Business 
District) 

Commercial Building (The Hall & Cool Beans Coffee) 

EAST: CBD (Commercial Business 
District) 

Commercial Building (Free Spirit Pottery and Glass Studio) 

WEST CBD (Commercial Business 
District) 

Commercial & Residential Building (Lori Grice Photography, Second 

Floor Loft Apartment Units) 

The subject property is located within the CBD (Commercial Business) district. Surrounding parcels include 
Commercial retail uses. (See Exhibit A –Location Map, Exhibit B—Future Development Map & Exhibit C—
Photos of Subject Site). 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-01  P a g e  | 2 

ATTACHMENTS: Exhibit A (Location Map), Exhibit B (Future Development Map), Exhibit C (Photos of Subject Site 
and surrounding sites), Exhibit D (Proposed Signage Plans), Exhibit E (Table 6 – Statesboro Zoning Ordinance) 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

The City of Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan’s Future Development Map includes the subject site in 

the following character area: 

“Downtown – Urban Core” 

Vision: 

The Statesboro Downtown character area includes the central historic portion of 

Statesboro in the intersecting area of Main Street. The area is intended to be 

redeveloped to create a central business district including many of the characteristics 

of a traditional downtown by promoting building, site and street-scape design features 

that encourage street-level pedestrian activity. The area should support a wide mixture 

of office and retail uses within structures with the potential for residential uses to be 

located on upper floors. It can also include office-related government and institutional 

uses. Urban building form should be promoted except for properties that contain the 

City's few remaining historic homes which should be redeveloped according to their 

more pastoral character. 

Suggested 

Development & 

Implementation 

Strategies:  

 

 

 Ensure that future phases of streetscape enhancements are developed in harmony 

with previous efforts as well as economic development goals of the City and the 

Downtown Statesboro Development Authority (DSDA) /Main Street program. 

 New development should respect historic context of building mass, height and 

setbacks. 

 New developments that contain a mix of residential, commercial and/or community 

facilities at small enough scale and proximity to encourage walking between 

destinations should be encouraged. 

 Historic structures should be preserved or adaptively reused wherever possible. 

 Encourage mixed-use infill and redevelopment. Uses should typically transition 

across the rear of properties instead of across the street to soften the transition 

and maintain appropriate streetscapes. 

 Create local historic districts. 
Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan, Community Agenda page 85-86. 

In addition, the Future Development Map and Defining Narrative section of the Comprehensive Plan states 
the following:  

“Downtown is the historic core of the city and should remain the activity and cultural hub of the region. In 
the Urban Core, traditional development of buildings along the sidewalk and a lively streetscape should be 
respected and promoted.” 

Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan, Community Agenda page 82. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-01  P a g e  | 3 

ANALYSIS 

 

I. Variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 6: Sign District 4 Dimension standards 
to allow for installation of an internally illuminated sign in Sign District 4 and the 
Commercial Business District.  

The applicant is requesting a variance from Article XV (Signs) regarding the internal illumination of signs in 
Sign District 4. Article XV (Signs) Section 1509 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regulates the 
placement, maintenance and removal of all signs within the City of Statesboro. The subject site is located 
in the CBD (Central Business) zoning district and is regulated by the dimensional standards of Sign District 
4. As per Table 6 (Exhibit E), internal illumination of building signs is prohibited, and all building signs 
must be constructed of wood or metal material.  

 

The intention of this request is to allow for the installation of one (1) illuminated sign over a blank canopy 
for a new business, locating at 40 East Main Street. This request will not exceed the maximum square 
footage allowed for this individual establishment (See Exhibit D – Proposed Signage Plans).  

 
Section 1503(G) states that no variances shall be permitted from the terms of Article XV regarding signs in 
the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance. It continues to state that “Specifically, no variances under article XVIII of 
this ordinance [chapter] shall be applicable to the standards contained within this article.” However, Article 
XV regarding signs is part of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance, which provides for the award of variances 
by the City Council from the zoning regulations stating that “approval of a variance must be in the public 
interest, the spirit of the ordinance must be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial 
justice done” and Section 1801 states that the Mayor and Council [should] consider if the following 
are true in its consideration of a variance request: 

 

1. There are special conditions pertaining to the land or structure in question because of its 
size, shape, topography, or other physical characteristic and that condition is not common 
to other land or buildings in the general vicinity or in the same zoning district; 
 

2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 
 

3. The application of the ordinance to this particular piece of property would create an 
unnecessary hardship; and 
 

4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the 
purposes and intent of the zoning regulations. After reviewing the proposed signage with 
advisement from the Downtown Development Authority, it has been determined that the signage 
would impair the purposes and intent of the zoning regulations in the Downtown area, as there are 
currently no building signs in the Downtown District, which are internally illuminated.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends denial of variance requested by application V 19-09-01. 
 
At the regularly scheduled meeting on October 1, 2019, The Statesboro Planning Commission voted to 
approve this variance request 4-0 with the following conditions.  

1. Approval of this variance does not allow for the construction of the proposed signage. Applicant 
will be required to submit a sign permit application for staff review and DSDA approval prior to 
construction commencement.  

2. Signage must come equipped with the ability to reduce the light output in the form of a dimmer or 
some similar function.  

 
 

  



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-01  P a g e  | 4 

EXHIBIT A:  LOCATION MAP 
 

 

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-01  P a g e  | 5 

 

EXHIBIT B: FUTURE DEVELOPMENT MAP 

 

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-01  P a g e  | 6 

EXHIBIT C: SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTY PHOTOS 

Picture 1: View of the subject property and area where V 19-09-01 is being requested. 

 

Picture 2: View of the nonadjacent property to the north of the subject site, currently Southern Finance.  

 

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-01  P a g e  | 7 

 

Picture 3: View of the abutting properties to the east on East Main Street, specifically Free Spirit Pottery & Glass 
Studio.  

 

 
Picture 4: View of the abutting properties to the west on East Main Street, specifically Lori Grice Photography.  

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-01  P a g e  | 8 

Picture 5: Sidewalk view going west from the property on East Main Street. .  

 

Picture 6: Sidewalk view going east of the property on East Main Street.  

 

  



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-01  P a g e  | 9 

Exhibit D: Proposed Signage Plans 

 

 

  



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-01  P a g e  | 10 

Exhibit E: Table 6: Statesboro Zoning Ordinance 

 

 

 



CITY OF STATESBORO 
 

COUNCIL 

Phil Boyum, District 1 

Sam Jones, District 2 

Jeff Yawn, District 3 

John Riggs, District 4 

Derek Duke, District 5 

 
 

 

Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 

Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 

I. Cain Smith, City Attorney 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 • STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence    Certified City of Ethics  

Telephone: (912) 764-5468      Fax: (912) 764-4691                                                                   

www.statesboroga.gov  

To: Charles Penny, City Manager and Leah Harden, City Clerk 

 

From: Justin Williams, City Planner I 

 

Date: October 7, 2019 

 

RE: October 15, 2019 

 

Policy Issue: Statesboro Zoning Ordinance: Zoning Variance Request 

 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the zoning variance 

requested by application V19-09-02 with conditions.  

 

Background: Josh Whitfield requests a variance from Article XV, Section 1509(C), 

Table 6 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance regarding the maximum sign height 

allowed in Sign District 4. (Tax Parcel S18 000067 000). 

 

Budget Impact: None 

 

Council Person and District: All 

 

Attachments: Development Services Report V 19-09-02 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

http://www.statesboroga.gov/


 

Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02 

City of Statesboro-Department of Planning and Development 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES REPORT 
P.O. Box 348    (912) 764-0630 

Statesboro, Georgia 30458  (912) 764-0664 (Fax) 

 V 19-09-02 

SIGN VARIANCE REQUEST 

4 SOUTH WALNUT STREET 

LOCATION: 4 South Walnut Street 

 

REQUEST: 

Variance from Article XV: Section 

1509(C), Table 6; for the placement of a 

building sign above the maximum allowed 

height of 12 feet in Sign District 4. 

APPLICANT: Josh Whitfield (Whitfield Signs) 

OWNER(S): Brannen Road LLC 

ACRES: 0.15 

PARCEL TAX  

MAP #: 
S18 000067 000 

COUNCIL        

DISTRICT:            
District 2 (Jones) 

PROPOSAL: 

The applicant requests a variance to Article XV Section 1509(C), Table 6 of the Statesboro Zoning 
Ordinance. Specifically, this application requests a variance from the maximum height requirements for the 
placement of building signs in Sign District 4 and the CBD (Central Business) zoning district. Applicant is 
requesting the placement of a building sign at a height of 22 feet (See Exhibit D – Proposed Signage 
Plans).  

BACKGROUND:   

The applicant submitted a request on August 7, 2019 for the placement of a sign on the building listed as 4 
South Walnut Street. This sign was initially denied, due to the requested placement of the sign at 22 feet, 
whereas Sign District 4 requires that building signs be placed no higher than 12 feet. The proposed sign is 
specifically for the second floor loft apartments in this building. The building is currently under significant 
construction with renovations taking place in the proposed restaurant, Walnut Room, and second floor 
apartments (Building Permit # 02019, 02119, and 02087 respectively). 
 

SURROUNDING LAND USES/ZONING:  

 ZONING: LAND USE: 

NORTH: CBD (Commercial Business 
District) 

Commercial Building (Funky Junk Shop & Statesboro Appliance). 

SOUTH: CBD (Commercial Business 
District) 

Commercial Building (United Appliance & Furniture) 

EAST: CBD (Commercial Business 
District) 

Commercial Building with second floor loft apartments. (Merle Norman Day 
Spa) 

WEST CBD (Commercial Business 
District) 

Statesboro Post Office  

The subject property is located within the CBD (Central Business) district. Surrounding parcels include 
Commercial retail, residential, and government uses (See Exhibit A –Location Map, Exhibit B—Future 
Development Map & Exhibit C—Photos of Subject Site). 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02  P a g e  | 2 

ATTACHMENTS: Exhibit A (Location Map), Exhibit B (Future Development Map), Exhibit C (Photos of Subject Site 
and surrounding sites), Exhibit D (Proposed Signage Plans), Exhibit E (Table 6 – Statesboro Zoning Ordinance) 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

The City of Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan’s Future Development Map includes the subject site in 

the following character area: 

“Downtown – Urban Core” 

Vision: 

The Statesboro Downtown character area includes the central historic portion of 

Statesboro in the intersecting area of Main Street. The area is intended to be 

redeveloped to create a central business district including many of the characteristics 

of a traditional downtown by promoting building, site and street-scape design features 

that encourage street-level pedestrian activity. The area should support a wide mixture 

of office and retail uses within structures with the potential for residential uses to be 

located on upper floors. It can also include office-related government and institutional 

uses. Urban building form should be promoted except for properties that contain the 

City's few remaining historic homes which should be redeveloped according to their 

more pastoral character. 

Suggested 

Development & 

Implementation 

Strategies:  

 

 

 Ensure that future phases of streetscape enhancements are developed in harmony 

with previous efforts as well as economic development goals of the City and the 

Downtown Statesboro Development Authority (DSDA) /Main Street program. 

 New development should respect historic context of building mass, height and 

setbacks. 

 New developments that contain a mix of residential, commercial and/or community 

facilities at small enough scale and proximity to encourage walking between 

destinations should be encouraged. 

 Historic structures should be preserved or adaptively reused wherever possible. 

 Encourage mixed-use infill and redevelopment. Uses should typically transition 

across the rear of properties instead of across the street to soften the transition 

and maintain appropriate streetscapes. 

 Create local historic districts. 
Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan, Community Agenda page 85-86. 

In addition, the Future Development Map and Defining Narrative section of the Comprehensive Plan states 
the following:  

“Downtown is the historic core of the city and should remain the activity and cultural hub of the region. 
In the Urban Core, traditional development of buildings along the sidewalk and a lively streetscape 
should be respected and promoted.” 

Statesboro Comprehensive Master Plan, Community Agenda page 82. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02  P a g e  | 3 

ANALYSIS 

 

I. Variance from Article XV Section 1509(C) Table 6: Sign District 4 Dimension standards 
to allow for installation of a building sign in excess of the maximum allowed height. 

The applicant is requesting a variance from Article XV (Signs) regarding the maximum height of building 
signs allowed in Sign District 4. Article XV (Signs) Section 1509 of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance 
regulates the dimensional standards for all building signs within the City of Statesboro. The subject site is 
located in the CBD (Commercial Business) zoning district and is regulated by the dimensional standards of 
Sign District 4. As per Table 6 (Exhibit E), the maximum height permitted for building sign placement on 
the building’s exterior elevations in Sign District 4 is restricted to 12 feet. 
The intention of this request is to allow for the installation of one (1) building sign at a height of 20 feet for 
the rental residential units located on the second floor of the building. This request will not exceed the 
maximum square footage allowed for this individual establishment (See Exhibit D – Proposed Signage 
Plans).  

 
Section 1503(G) states that no variances shall be permitted from the terms of Article XV regarding signs in 
the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance. It continues to state that “Specifically, no variances under article XVIII of 
this ordinance [chapter] shall be applicable to the standards contained within this article.” However, Article 
XV regarding signs is part of the Statesboro Zoning Ordinance, which provides for the award of variances 
by the City Council from the zoning regulations stating that “approval of a variance must be in the public 
interest, the spirit of the ordinance must be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial 
justice done” and Section 1801 states that the Mayor and Council [should] consider if the following 
are true in its consideration of a variance request: 

 

1. There are special conditions pertaining to the land or structure in question because of its 
size, shape, topography, or other physical characteristic and that condition is not common 
to other land or buildings in the general vicinity or in the same zoning district; 

 
2. The special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant; 

 
 

3. The application of the ordinance to this particular piece of property would create an 
unnecessary hardship; and 

 
4. Relief, if granted, would not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the 

purposes and intent of the zoning regulations. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approval of the variance requested by application V 19-09-02 with the following 
conditions: 
 

1. Approval of this variance does not allow for the construction of the proposed signage. Applicant 
will be required to submit a sign permit application for staff review and approval prior to 
construction commencement. 
 

At its regularly scheduled meeting on October 1, 2019, The Statesboro Planning Commission 
recommended approval of this sign variance with conditions 5-0.  
 
 

  



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02  P a g e  | 4 

EXHIBIT A:  LOCATION MAP 
 

 

 

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02  P a g e  | 5 

EXHIBIT B: FUTURE DEVELOPMENT MAP 

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02  P a g e  | 6 

EXHIBIT C: SITE AND SURROUNDING PROPERTY PHOTOS 

Picture 1: View of the subject property and area where V 19-09-02 is being requested. 

 

Picture 2: View of the adjacent properties located on West Main Street to the northwest of the subject site.  

 

 

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02  P a g e  | 7 

Picture 3: View of the street and adjacent properties, looking west along West Main Street. 

 

Picture 4: View of the surrounding properties,  east along West Main Street and South Walnut Street. 

 

 

 

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02  P a g e  | 8 

Picture 5: View of the surrounding properties, consisting of residential and commercial uses located along West Main 
Street and South Walnut Street. 

 

Picture 7: View of the subject property, looking southwest from West Main Street. 

 

 

 

 

Picture 6: View of the adjacent property looking west across South College Street. 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02  P a g e  | 9 

 

Picture 8: View of the subject property, looking south along South Walnut Street. 

 

  



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02  P a g e  | 10 

Exhibit D: Proposed Signage Plans 

 

 



Development Services Report 

Case: V-19-09-02  P a g e  | 11 

Exhibit E: Table 6: Statesboro Zoning Ordinance 

 

 

 



 

 

CITY OF STATESBORO 

 

50 EAST MAIN STREET • P.O. BOX 348 
STATESBORO, GEORGIA 30459-0348 

Jonathan McCollar, Mayor 
Charles Penny, City Manager 

Leah Harden, City Clerk 
Cain Smith, City Attorney 

COUNCIL 
Phillip A. Boyum 
Sam Lee Jones 
Jeff B. Yawn 
John C. Riggs 
Derek Duke 

Georgia Municipal Association City of Excellence  
Telephone:  (912) 764-5468 • Fax: (912) 764-4691 • email: cityhall@statesboroga.net 

To: Charles Penny, City Manager and Leah Harden, City Clerk 
 
 
From: Cain Smith, City Attorney 
 
 
Date: October 1, 2019 
 
 
RE: October 15, 2019 City Council Agenda Items 
 
 
Policy Issue: Resolution waiving late fees and setting license fees for holders of 
City issued alcoholic beverage licenses for calendar year 2020.  
 
Recommendation: Review and consideration of attached resolution by Mayor 
and Council 
 
Background: Ordinance 2019-09 was passed on October 1, 2019. Said 
ordinance set out new license types, reset duration of licenses from fiscal year to 
calendar year, and removed fees for service of different alcoholic beverage 
types. 
 
Budget Impact: Current schedule has been in place on an interim basis since 
July 1, 2019 with negligible fiscal impact 
 
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
 
Attachments: Proposed Resolution 
 
 
 
   



Resolution Regarding Alcoholic Beverages License Fees and Late Fees 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-34 

A RESOLUTION WAIVING 2020ALCOHOL LICENSE RENEWAL LATE FEES 
AND SETTING 2020 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENCE FEES 

 
WHEREAS Ordinance 2019-09 (”Ordinance”) amending Chapter Six of the City of Statesboro 
Code of Ordinances was passed by Mayor and Council on October 1, 2019;  
 
WHEREAS said Ordinance set new license types and reset the issuance of alcoholic beverage 
licenses to run the calendar year instead of fiscal year; 

 
WHEREAS Ordinance imposes late fees on license renewals beginning on November 1 of every 
calendar year; and 
 
WHEREAS Ordinance creates license categories not previously covered by the City of 
Statesboro schedule of rates, fines, and fees;  
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Statesboro, Georgia 
while in regular session on October 15, 2019 as follows: 
 
1. Late fees under Section 6-5(i) for 2020 alcoholic beverage license renewals not be 

imposed until December 1, 2019. Said late fee shall be in athe amount of $200.00 
2. License fees for license types enumerated in Sec 6-4(c) be set as follows in the City 

of Statesboro schedule of rates, fines, and fees: 
Package:   $1750 
Bar:  $4300 
Bar with Kitchen: $4300 
Event Venue: $2500 
Low Volume: $750 
Pub:  $5600 
Restaurant:  $2800 

 
       City of Statesboro, Georgia 
 
       _______________________ 
       Jonathan J McCollar, Mayor 
 
       Attest: 
 
       _______________________ 
       Leah Harden, City Clerk 



Statesboro Fire Department 
Proudly serving the City of Statesboro and 

surrounding communities since 1905! 
 

   

24 West Grady Street | Statesboro, GA 30458 
Phone: (912) 764-3473 | Fax: (912) 681-7205 

 

Timothy E. Grams 
Fire Chief 

Jonathan M. McCollar 
Mayor 

City Council Agenda Memorandum 
 
To: Charles Penny, City Manager  
 
From: Timothy E. Grams, Fire Chief 
 
Date: 10-4-2019 
 
RE: Submission of Application for the Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG). 
 
Policy Issue: NA 
 
Recommendation: Allow the Statesboro Fire Department to submit an application for AFG funding for 
projects outlined below. 
 
Background: In the fall of each year the Federal Government invites fire departments from around the 
country to submit an application to the Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG). The primary goal of the 
AFG is to help local fire departments meet their firefighting and emergency response needs, through the 
awarding of monetary funds to ascertain critically needed equipment protective gear, emergency 
vehicles, training, programs and other resources.  The AFG is a competitive process and it is the Fire 
Department’s desire to submit an application for the three following projects in this grant period.  The 
total for these three projects is $100,000.00. 

1) Firefighter health screening to include advanced cancer detection. 
• $500.00 per person. 
• $25,000.00 project request. 

2) Emergency Medical Technician training. 
• Goal of training each employee to National Registry- EMT standard. 
• The intent is not to provide Emergency Medical Services.  A certain level of 

medical training is required as part of the Technical Rescue training program. 
• $50,000.00 project request. 

3) Rope Rescue Technician training. 
• Goal of training each employee to NPQ Rope Technician. 
• $25,000 project request. 

 
 



Statesboro Fire Department 
Proudly serving the City of Statesboro and 

surrounding communities since 1905! 
 

   

24 West Grady Street | Statesboro, GA 30458 
Phone: (912) 764-3473 | Fax: (912) 681-7205 

 

Timothy E. Grams 
Fire Chief 

Jonathan M. McCollar 
Mayor 

 
Budget Impact: The relevant stipulations of this grant would be a 5% cost share to be paid by the City.  
This would equate to $5000.00 if the Fire Department were awarded all three projects at the total 
amount of funding requested. Fire Department Staff believe that this cost can be absorbed by the Fire 
Department’s annual budget which would require no additional allocation of funds.  
 
Council Person and District: All 
 
Attachments: Resolution Requesting Approval to Apply for the 2019 Assistance to Firefighters Grant 
(AFG).  
  



 
RESOLUTION 2019-35: A RESOLUTION REQUESTING APPROVAL TO APPLY FOR 

ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT FOR THE CITY OF STATESBORO, 
GEORGIA 

 
 

THAT WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency announce the availability 
of Assistance to Firefighter Grant, which may be utilized to aid fire departments with needs 
associated with fire service delivery within their communities; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency could award the City of 
Statesboro up to $100,000.00 with a five percent (5%) cost share or equivalent in-kind expenditure.  

 
WHERAS, this grant allows the expenditures of the grant funds over a twelve (12) month 

period and is reimbursed to the funded agency. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Statesboro, 
Georgia in regular session assembled this 15th day of October, 2019 hereby authorizes the 
application for the 2019 Assistance to Firefighter Grant. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the funding will be through the City of Statesboro Fire 

Department budget for expenditures from this grant. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute all 

documents related to the application of said grant. 
 
 

Adopted this 15th day of October, 2019. 
 
 
CITY OF STATESBORO, GEORGIA 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
By: Jonathan M. McCollar, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Attest: Leah Harden, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 










	Council Agenda
	10-15 Employee of the Quarter council memo
	10-15 Called Council Minutes
	10-01-2019 Minuets
	10-15 GDOT Signal Permit
	10-15 City of Statesboro Easement
	10-15 City of Statesboro Exhibit A
	10-01 City Mgr Memo_SpeedOrd.
	10-15 Speed Ord_GDOT LOR_Council Memo 2019_rev0
	10-01 09092019 - STATESBORO NEW
	10-15 Eagle Creek Exemption to open container
	10-15 Planning Memo & Packet
	10-15 resolution memo
	10-15 resolution 2019-34
	10-15 FD AFG Memo
	10-15 Grant Application Resolution 2019-35 for 2019 AFG
	10-15 Sanitary Storm Rehab Project



